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Interview wit/I Qreg Ly11n/R11rheiford Jf[l{s • Great-nephew 

Who was Mr. Wills to you? 

Lt would be my Grandmother's half-brother ormy gre-at-uncle. 

What type of a man was Mr. Wills that you remember 01· stories you migl1t bave 

heard, was he a bard worker , what kind of a person was be? 

l really didn't k:no·w him that well Lo behonest with ya. 

\Vere !"here any stories you hear<L about him? 

No. 

What do you know about Mr. \Vills and tl1e mine disaster? 

On the day of the of the cave iu x he felt a a vibration on a on a thundering rush of 

air, so he ran for the ladder and on the way he was he was notifying people to follow him, 

so there was J believe three otber men that were following him up !he ladder. When they 

got to a certain point there was a thud and they looked back. and there was nobody 

coming up the ladder after bini he was all aJone. 

Was his brother working up gi-ound? 

Alben Tipet 

How did lVlr. Tipef find out that bis brother was alive'? 

1 guess be looked down down the ladder and he was coming up the ladder and he 

helped. up on to the surface. At that point Wilfer? just cola[)ed as soon as he got up on 

Lhe surface. cause he bad climbed something like 800 feet straight up the ladder none 

stop. 



How close to being washed away was be? 

Very close and he was in x perfect physical specimen, he was only22 years of 

age or he may of not made it up, all that distan·ce. 

How did it effec.t him aft-er finding out that he was the lone survivor? 

He never. was able. to go back to work in in any mines around here, and they 

moved to Flint, and he worked jnx Buick as ax believe it was a security cop or 

something like t11al. They did come back up here once, I think was x 1943, and he got a 

job on surface at oi:le of the mines but he still didn't like that And he had nightmares 

over that event for the rest of bis llfe. 

Do you think be went through survivor guilt? 

I suppose there was, to a certain degree but, in another way everyone else was 

happy that there was at least one person survived that disaster. And they wen~ all one big 

family. 

flow did it effect tlte rest of yo1u· family'! 

I don' t think any o{ the other x well I don't x, did Oliver? ever work lo the mine 

in the mine anywhere I don ' t think he did either he moved to Plint also. So none of those 

that. had survived lhal ever went back to work in the mines. (Sonya agree) Thar sm.vived 

1hal disaster. 

Was Wills engaged at the' time? 

Re was man:ied, yep. 

Ho,\ did the disaster effect her/ did you bear anything about that"! 

No. 

\1/hat people were burl by the disaster'! 



Well my my Grandpa, Jon Wallberg, went to his mother-in-law, law's house. 

Mrs. Wills, that would be x Wilfred Wills's mother and Walter and Wi ll iam Ti pet's 

motlier and x he told her that William Tipet's body was one of those that was found and 

she said Jon have you ever s11ffered like I'm suffering now'! 

Did you hear about t he community/what was the mood? 

N.A. 

Anytl1ing else you want to add'! 

Th.ere was a mooument dedicated to this disaster, I believe it wa:s August 27'h, 

19721 was there. And Wilfred TippeL who at that time was was ill witb kidney cancer 

was x penni tted by his doctor to come up and x participate in those ceremonies. he-died 

the following year, but I I'll still remember I.hat day. 

\Vil.fred Wills or Tipe!'! 

Wills. 

Could you start that over, only with Wills? 

Sure. Sure. On August 27th, 1972 there was a monument dedicated up in Elly 

township to the Barnes and Hecker disaster. A,nd Wilfred Wills x was was allowed to 

come up from Flint ;,. by his doctor. at that I ime he was ill, with cancer but he was.able.to 

come up and participate in those ceremonies. And the next year lie passed away. 

You were at the. ceremonies'! 

Yes 

l:low wus it for Wills when he came up/ hard for him to talk. about it? 

For many years he would not even talk about ii, ii was too disturbing, but Ile was 

able to talk about that particular day. 



How old was be by then? 

I think he was about 68. 

Were Lbere a lot of survivors there? 

Yep. 

·what about friends and family? 

Aunts and uncles and cousins and.alike. 

Lots of people were related, could you explain, i.n your own words'? 

!just read in an article lbal l11ere was something like three sets of brothers that got 

killed in that mine. 

Jmerv1ew with Emil Hill/William lli/1 's son (eounly mine inspecror killed al the mine) 

So, how old were you on November 3, L926'? 

10. 

\'ou lost your father·? 

And x he was buried on my birthday, tbe 5t11 of November. 

You turned 11 on November 5? 

Right. 

What memories do you have from the time of people? 

Well the thing I remember the most is x teacher came over x J was lo sm grade, 

and it was aboul lO o;clock in Lhemoming and she said you can go. home. She didn't tell 

tne why or anything. And 1 got home and there was a lot of people-over the house. And 

a, sol rui1 upstairs, chat,ge clothes and went out to play, bul there was l'\Obody 10 play 

with they were still in school. And a, when I come back to the house there then x, my 



• 

aw1t came over and said your daddy got killed in the mine. So ll1a1 was, lhelirsl x knew 

about it. 

How djd yo1u- mother cope? 

Well she she musta had lots a sisu?, you know what s isu is yeah. well, cause she 

held up pretty good. And she comforted the children, and talked to lhe visitors and, 

uncles and aunties and cousins and, 

What does sisu stand for'? 

Guts. Or intestinal fortitude, fancy name, but a, I mean never give up, keep 

plugin', 

Row m11ny brothers and sisters do you have? 

L have iwo brothers and one sister and Ille brothers are dead, sister hving in 

Florida, and a. she lost her first husband in auto accident and second husband in a, x he 

used 10 x lix fix Lhings, he got fixated. And she had one daughter with her first husband 

and a son wjth her. second busbru1d and ll1ey're both living. And a, the daughter is 

Shirley-Marie she married to James Todd, and they live down Florida in the winter and 

California in the summer, cause they inherited some property out in California. And a, 

we just discovered, mybrother's-children;grand-children, my x. grand-niece sent sent me 

pictures ot; x their fami ly, we never ever seen pictures of them, so that was the magic of 

1' what do you call IJ,at, e-mail e-mail x it come in a round about way. TI1ere Wa!l a fella 

from. x Kentucky x was looking for a John Ohola which was my my g:raod-father, that 

would be her great-grand-father. And she happen to see on the website and got a hold of 

hiro and then he go1 a hold of Judy Soynee, wbicb., they were cousins but x were cousins 

othe~ way. tJ1ey were cousins that way. And lbe11Judy called me, and a, we got on the 



phone, talked lo them, she said sbe want 1·0 come to Stoneville, cause that's where my 

grandma arrdgrandpa on my mother's side and my grandma and grandpa on my father's 

side.? the mine. so she said I want lo come there andlakepic1ures of1he house. which 

they djd, but she was limited because x had to get back cause school was starting, b.ul x ii 

was, 10 me it was just like magic, to be able 10 see somebody who was you.r relation and 

so close and !hen Ju.dy Soynee and her sister went 10 Finland and they go1 -a hold of 

people on my mother's side which would be on her side because her grandmother and my 

mother were sisters, so it would the same people that they went to see. And 1bat's 

enough, 1 ain't gonna talk oo more, let somebody else talk. 

-what kind of person was your father ? 

Wel l we didn't get to see him very much. cause he was x campaigner, hex lned 

for Lhe job of mine inspector. and the first two times he failed then tl1e Lhird time he got 

in, and 1he fourth lime xx eletion day was lhc, wha1 November 2nd, yeah, and a, he go1 in 

bu1 be never gol to serve because be was killed so. 

\Vhar was your father's name·? 

Wi lliam E. Ellis-HiJL?. (spoke something in Finish) really his name, (spoke it 

again), but x in Finland you can change your name. You can take the mother's, the 

father' s naine or the p)ace x where you lived or the locatio11, so when pe()plc co111c from 

there, if you don' I kuow 1ha1 they changed 1heir names, you go to the wrong house, 

(laughing) btu !hey were they were lucky, they found over30 people x would be Judy 's 

and my rclatio,is. But like x my oldest brother he' s had 9 childrerr 3 adopted children, 18 

grand-child:ren. and, what was it 9 great-grand•child.i-en. (Sonya says something), But I've 



been getting pictures, and I got some pictures there, that she's been sending up here, 

which is wonderful, cause we finally got a connection. And a, so so. 

Tape 2 

/111erview with Roy Milfinwki/So11 of Solomon Millimaki killed <ti the mine 

1 I :50:23 

Row old were you when (got cu t off)? 

I was 8 yeru:s old, {Sonya says something), yeah almost 9. 

When was your birthday then? 

March the 2"d, (Sonya says something) I 9 I 8 when I was born. 

Wha t do you remember on the day of November 3rd 1926'? 

Well f remember coming home from school and a, walked in the house and there 

was all 1.he brothers and my mother. My mother crying and all the boys were there. And 

a, ll1al's aboul as much as l remember, they were alJ i:n shock and they said x, dad had got 

left in 1.b.e miJ.1e. 

Did you go to the site (got cut off by the answer, so there a little of Sonya talking)? 

Yeah we went lo the site and they were, bailing water oulla the shaft at the skip, 

U1at's the x like a bucket or lbe x, men rolled down in in the water was coming out, bul 

they weren't gaining a bit o.n ir. So we knew what was, not good. 

What much have been going through her mind at tha t time (pictm·e)'? 

X T wo\1ld11 't know, everybody was in shock U1a1 was standing arotwd the shaft, 

there U1el'e was very litlle conversation going on. X lhey figured they some survivors 



would be coming outta there, bul when we seen the water that they were bailing outta 

there was impossible, to have any survivors. 

How did your mother go on? 

Well. x Cleveland-Cliffs gave b.er 50 dollars a montl1, compensation. There was, 

8 of us boys and I girl. My dad used to say he got 8 boys and I, and eve1yone got a 

sister, (laugh) and·a, I tell ya, we didn't eaL too many T-booe steaks on. on the money that 

she was gettiug, but we did eat quite a bit of deer meat. We had that, fanuer's license 

that was good for 12 montlls of the year. (Laugh). 

What do you remember about your mom not too long after the accident/ bow did 

sb e ta lk 10 you about this'? 

She didn't say anything, x sh.ejust. very seldom sl1e mentioned it. 

What 1,'as your father like/do you bave memories? 

Very, x ve(y linle. He was supervisor of Ishpeming Township for quite a while. 

And a. he was mixed up in politics always! and be went to work when it was datk. and he 

came home in U1e dark so, we didn't see b.iro too much.. 

It sound like be was trying to provide for bis family. 

Oh yes. yeah, we, we never went hungry, we had cows in the barn m1d we had the 

old farm. at the north lake forks, whe.re the tire shop is now. That's where we were born 

and raised, he always said Lhat all he could r-aise Lhere was boys and grasshoppers.. 

(Laugh) So a. then we moved to west Ishpeming from the farm there. so. but we kept the 

farm and we always had our, meat, spuds, milk, 'boul the only thing that ma bought was 

coffee ,md sugar. X so wenianagcd. 



Did you and you.r brothers help around the house/ wbat was it like around the 

house? 

Oh yes, xx x, in fact I gotta story to tell ya, if you wanna liste11 to itabout(cough) 

x city of Ishpeming was going lo x give a bounty on rats, 2 dollars a head. But thaL was a 

rumor ya know, x one of my older brothers lieard il and he said "hey he we can make a 

killing because we gotta lot of tats in the barn." So we burned '? ine revolver on the older 

brother and he was rel.uctant to give us that revolver. But he finally relented and gave u~ 

one shell. So we went in the bam and x brother Otto his name was, he told me 10 stand 

by the light switch and we' ll put a pan of com on the Door. And when J say now. you 

throw the switch and f'll shoot 'em. So I was standing by the light switch and 1 could 

hear old Bessie. she was chewing her cud, brother Otto was standing beltind her and he 

said. now, and he shot, .u)d that explosion ia that little bam. Old Bessie hopped up and 

ber tail went up and he, she fertilized x brother Otto from head 10 toe. (Laugb.i.og) (Sonya 

talking) And a, one thing, I.be older brother was, wise he only gave them one shell. 

because ifbc woald had another shell Bessie would have been hamburger. (LauShing) 

Di(i you guys ever get a rat? 

No, no and tl1e beauty part of it we didn't even get a rat. (Laughing) And x 

another x story that I, tell ya l was x after a ballgame in Ishpeming one time, an old timer 

came and tapped me on the shoulder. And he said I worked with you dad in the Bames-

f:Iecker, and a he said that I'll t~ll ya why that mine came down. You got the company's 

versio11 of it, lhat there was so much. it had rained for weeks and weeks and the 

overburden was so heavy, there was 200 feet of ove1·bw·den and broken groUJ1d. it wasn ' t 

soliding? under, and that was x official version of that' s why it came down, But this old 



fella told me he said don't you believe tl1at., be said T worked oo the first level, and he 

said after one blast he said the ore started come down just like coffee grounds and Utat it 

kept on running, kept on running. And he had, and then he-said we had a quota of 

shoveling so many little ore-bu&gies everyday. He said well we hit (he jackpot. because 

that was that was easy shoveling that like shoveling coffee. So a, h.e said this went on for 

weeks, he said. and x in the evenings be·said would plank up Ute run. So iL would run 

during Lhe night the morning ,ve'd start working, he said we'd take the planks off, and 

we'd have a running, he said that went on for weeks he said lheo one day. he said there 

came some surface flocks amongst that ore and he said he got scared. Re quit, and he 

went lo Dctr.oil and he said he was coming outta the factory when a newsboy was 

honking. Extras on x. xx saying that lhe mine went down in the U.P. And he said before 

he bought the papor he knew it was lhe Barners and Hecker. That's xx that's from the x 

guy that worked U1ere, it wasn't the official version. 

But he knew. 

He knew. be had worked right there where it came down. 

11 :59:03.01 

l11tervie.w with Dewey Tippet and lnme Vicmy/Son and daughter a/Walter Tippett who 
was killed al the mine 
M;=man 

W:=woman 

Bow old were both of you ou Nov. 3, 1926? 

M: I was a 5 x almost 6, I W3$ 6 in (he following January. (Womao is mwnbling 

a little while he speaks). W: l was 12. 



How many people were in your family? 

M: 5. Well let's see ... W: 5, 6 (Sonya) M: We had had there was 5. 5, . . W: 4. 5. 

M: 5. 5 x survivors. W: See my mother bad two children that died when they were young 

(Sonya) and I looked like x. Twas liked the one I.hat diecl, the girl. I was adopted, x x then 

a she x saw me ll11d sh.e wanted x found out about my. si(uation and when I was pu1 up for 

adoption she adopted me, so. 

You look like you lit into the family. 

W: Well that's what everybody says that we look alike (Man muri1bles while she 

speaks). M: Well U1e two the two x brother and sister older ... W: Yeah . .. M: xx they 

both died before my time and that's probably one of reasons I was I was here so (Sonya) 

but a . . . (Woman mumble) the fartheresl. 

We.re you the baby in the family'! 

M; 1'10. W; He was a baby when· I was adopted. (Sonya) M: Theti then !hero was 

twins twins came along after me. (Woman mumbles) 

Never p..-obably expected twins. 

W: x No. (Sonya) M: yeah .. they were 2 at the time of the accident. 

For woman, what do you feJnember about that day? 

W: x x what I remember the most is my mother walking the floor all !he.time. 

from the kitchen 10 U1e, through the dining rorun into Lhe living and, crying lier eyes out 

and had a handkerchief in her hand and wiping her eyes and -x x JC the little ones were big 

enough to get arom1d wall(ing :!' around, so they were following, x mum around so. But 

that was x that <,lay was tcrrib le and it was for days afterwards to• yeah. 



• 

Man, what did your mother tell you what had happened? 

M: T don't x, I don't remember what we were told but Ix remember what she just 

mentioned about, she had, cause I remember she had a towel that she was crying into 

back and forth and then she, she was; x it was just a matter of disbelief that IVasn't just, x 

people weren't gonna x accept the fact that, they were all gone you know, x everybody 

was thinking hoping that they were gonna, be able to get some of them out, but x. T guess 

before th;e day was out that iL was all realized that x, this wasn 't gonna be x anymore 

survivors irttbere so, x what was exactly put was x I don't know but I know she that 

there's been a bad. accideat at the mine, and x, our dad wouldn't be coming home so. 

What do you both remember about your dad? 

·w: WeTI, x, he loved sports and probably x Dewey can tell you more aboul his 

going wrestling and his kickball?, accounts of that and x football. (Sortya) Do you know 

anythmg? M: well x he was he was pretty well, kt)own as a football player mostly and as 

a Caruish 7 wrestler and x, one @nc time my moU1er said that there was a carnival (cough) 

came lo the Legion ? Park 1n Ishpeming between lshpemi ng and Negaunee. And x, _a 

slrcetear track x a streetcar traveled down there. used to x run people back and forth to 

Negaw1ee past the Legion Park, but hex challenged a wrestler at the local at l\1e carnival 

and x pinned the guy·and he got ten dollars and he sald he was afraid he was gollllll get 

held Ltp on tl1e way home, so he hid the ten dollars in his, in x I.he ban of his hat. 

(Laughing) so he wouldn't get robbed. Bui then was x be was well known as a as a 

football player 100 and x one time, x Northern wanted him to take a few, x enroll for a 

couple a courses there so he would be eligible to play footbaU for them. but whether he 



ever did or not J don' t 1 don ' t think he ever got to playing for Northern. W: He had a 

family to support too, so that made a difference {Man mumbles). 

He didn't work for tbe mine that long before the tragedy occurred. 

M: That washisiirsl day. He started x he got he got In a abou-1 half a shift that's 

about it, cause he just started. Hex day before was election day so he, brought al l his. 

clothes to x. to the mine to get ready to go to work the next day. so x election day was 

like a like a holiday, and they. there were the fella that x kid around were talking abou1 

them coming out with all brand new clothes and everything so they, lhcy be to wrestling, 

they start wrestling ro x get them dirty before they down. down to the mine (Laughu1g). 

No but x there not x, there a few things about him that kinda stand out -in my mind that l 

c~ remember about him and x. but there really not too many. 

Be was a good family man, it sounds like. 

Both: yeah 

Did his brothers that worked there want him to work there'! 

M: Well he he, well x those were U1e circumstances in the family when my 

grandmother died, and x, my grandfather wanted my mother to come and keep house for 

him, while he he worked at the prison so, it was too far lo, to hard to travel in U1e wi\lter 

time, back in those days, the back and forth everyday, so he, he had x 2 brothers that were 

mioiiig captains so he went up there to ask them for a job and neither one of them wanted 

to give him a job they wanted him, say long as your out oflhe mine to stay 0111 (Can't 

really understand last few words). But he said well he said 1 got to have a job, so he met 

x Bill, the captain at the Bamers-Heoker said will you come lo work for me? But he had 

worked lo mines before 1hat, then he, he got out and he was a police officer in Marquette 



• 

for a while and tben x after an incident down lhere at the x, got ajob over al the prison, 

and he was working there. X he was involved in a few x incidents at lhc l?rison where 

they, they x x got wind of x prison breaks that we,e being planned and it fo iled attempts x 

xx of the prison breaks and x and x, word was out lhat some of them down there were 

gonna ouJ to gel him because hex took part in tbat and I have a T have a gun that was 

found in a cashed that was supposed to be for, x x made available for the guys when they 

broke loose· from the prison so. 

To woman, bow did your mother cope a fter this tragedy? 

W: well she was at home, as far as she was concerned U1a1 was where she was 

born and raised in that home and that was home to her. So wJ1.e11 we lived with my 

grandfather, it worked out, he had a garde11, and he had, he always had animals·, he had a 

C-OW and sheep, and in the summer he raised x a pjg or so, and 1hen we always had so. 

There was always a garden full of vegetables so. but there was no problems lhere at all. 

Ex.epct that. I think they paid my mother 24, 28 doBars a week. from after, but what 

could ya buy, much not much. Course prices were a lot cheaper al that time, particular 

Lime. Thiuk how long ago thai was. 

liow did you kids get by/feel l)rorective of siblings? 

W; No. I don't think so. We fought just as much as we used 10 do, hey. (Man, 

agrees whlleshe speaks). M: We survived. W: Twas the oldest sister, xx x, they 

figured I was bossing them. M: One thing that .always stuck with me though is and has 

been x x beneficial 10 me to this day, is 'X, being we get a little bit bigger my mother xx 

always taught us how to cook and how 10 sew butloos on our clothes and meud our socks 

or pul ax patch on our blue jeans, overhauls is what we called them. And .x. xx to do 



• 

lalllldry and siuIC like lba1 because she always said if anything happens to me your gonna 

be able to take care of yourself. And, that's been. we managed to survive when we didn't 

we dido· L have 10 do, bul all that stuff she taught LIS back then has been yery usefu I to me 

up till now. 

So she thought it was imponant to be indepen.den t. 

Both agree. 

Things she normally wouldn' t have taught you, she bad to. 

M: (Mumbles at first) she said it was a matter of our survival, x so that those 

things she Lhought that we had to !mow. W: She was an independent person herself, 

anyways, my mother was. She knew what she wanted to do and how LO do iL So she 

made a let of her clothes and stuff like that so. M: Made a lol of our clothes and x x, 

back 1hen, x x most people are x x kinda looked down on homemade clothes and now this 

day. somebody that can make clothes themselves, they better qliillity than that. W: x the 

only thiug l remember ofwe couldn't afford 10 buy a new coat, and I had to wear a 

summer coat for a while, in winter. and I nearly froze. but the followillg winier. they 

brought me one of these x corduroy sheep, lhey weren't sheep skin ioside bul they looked 

like that. outside and I thought I had the wodd because I had a new coat after having 10 

wear, x a coat that wasn't warm all winter. M: Well, Roy, Roy and lhave been friends 

since we wete young kids.I used to Bames~Hecker bro11ght us together (didn' t catch part 

of that) from being in the same fix there. And x his mother had cows and sheep and 

chickens and one thing that x, we used 10 go up there x where they used to shear the 

sheep and she Would wash and carve the wool and she had a spinning wheel and make 

the yarn into whatever they had. they bad socks and mittens made from. scratch right 



from home, you know, so that there's a, so that's one of the thiQgs that helped them along 

loo you ,know, things that there mother would do for them 100. W: I have 10 tell you lhis 

one thou_gh, my brother joined the navy, so he could get away from home so he would not 

have to milk lhe cow, and so what did my grandfather do right after he joined the navy. 

he sold the cow. M: Well, x that was a job I had from the time I was 10 years old-was to 

do the bam work. Feed the cows and x ruid x do the milking and clean the barn. X I 

never got into a, but a, there was no argument about getting your chores done when you 

came home from school you knew what you had lo do so you went ahead and and got 

your chores done. ll1en if you wanted to go skiing, or skating, or sledding, or something 

then well that's. that came after the chores were done x x so the sooner you got done with 

your chores lhe sooner you could be out and do these things so. [ think as a kid we used 

10 have a 101 more fun because .xx Roy Lived up i.bere x, lived up on the hill and it was 

always x Milamaki's hill when lh(: kids, when the kids went sledding every night and 

there waso'1 very many cars in those days so like the, in the winter. you could probably 

go sledding LIP tl1ere every nighl of the week before a car happen to come by so. 

1'APE4 

Interview with Ruth Powell/Daughter of Emil Maki killed ar the mine. 

11 :00:45 

As.k the Name. 

She gj;ves it. 

What weTe some of the stories that you were told about your fatber'l 



A man I.bat was sometimes criticized by, his in-law, brother-in-Jaws and thal 

because he \Vas so good to my mother. Like a. years ago a. if you dido'1 help a woman in 

the house but he was always great for, i.fwe go vjsiriog 1ny mother say he'd run around 

ll1e car and talce the baby from her anns and then the other brother-in-laws would tease 

him, but he was U1a1 type of a man very x, much involved with his x wife and his children 

lhat way. Good person. X. 1 don't remember 100 much of anything baSic.just what 1 was 

to ld by my mother throughout the years and a ... 

Your dad was gone. 

That's what she said. because after five wars this one girl comes along. oh'! hey, 

yean and i whenhe died, 1 Wink I gave my mother hard time. but I remember loneliness 

ofx, going to the window and would ~ay 'don' t cry, papa's coming home soon.' A.nd x, 

evidently 1 was kind ofx, U1e daddy, daddy's pct there, after five boys x he was very easy 

on the boys, my mother said, even though x, they'd have to go some-.vhere and the house 

would be a mess U1ey'd come nomc he'd say, 'let that aU go, as long as everybody's 

alright' you know, he had that type of personality. X, I remember my mo1her saying 10 

me how she got over ii, ,"<sites.aid, well course slle was very ehureh involved, she said 

she had a dream one night and he said to her, don't you worry about me, l'm on the 

twentieth level. And sbe said, she had such peace over that, from lhe11 on. So those arc 

lbose Little stories that I remember. there .weren't a lot ofthem.1 wish 1 had more. lo 

remember and x to; but those stand out very definitely in my mind. I do remember that I 

had these brothers who were supposed to be my baby-sitters and x, often my mother 

would go to church tbr choir practice or, sewing club or whatever they had and, she not 

out the door live minutes and they were gone 10 and they 'd beat her home by five 



• 

minutes, bui we oever squealed on each other. But in later years. when we'd tell her that. 

it just, tore her up, she didn't like that at all . But we kind of, raised ourselves in a way. 

What did your mother do,to try to support you guys? 

She worked at the Gazer many, many years and lhen she wallpapered :in the 

summer months. every evening. And she sewed for the lady and baked for the lady next 

door. And she did sew for a lot of, she was eJ>;ceUeut seamstress. And whenever the lady 

next door wanted some, where J speod my whole life next door, wan.led anything baked, 

she, my mother was terrific at that, so she, she eamed extra money that way all the time. 

Yon know on Saturdays, x, her only day out she'd, x wash clothes. iron clothes. bake for 

U,e week. clean, do all of that work and ihen the ladies, x, were home all week would 

come and visit her one by one al! day Saturday and she'd have to make coffee for all, that 

was a Finish thing you know, you always had x coffee and coffee bread or something, J 

don 't know how they did it. And every Saturday night wc were taken 10 the steam bath. 

And all clean underwear and the whole works, the four boys would go in first. lhe mother 

would wash Lhem up as she was dressed while she was in there. She was very particular 

about lbat, and then when U1ey were done, ber and l would go into the steam bath. and 

then we'd a.II walk. borne wjth our coats open and we-were so warm and everything, l 

always remember things like that, And then we would go home and do our Sunday 

school lessons and we were in -church in Sunday school the next morning. And any 

activity at the church, we were raised in the church. (PHONE RINGS). 

What type of a mother was she? 

Very strong. x, didn't have to tell llS to do anything twice.just the look in her eye 

took oare of that, we were never spanked or anything like that. Very strong, and told us 



ei,:.actly what we had to do. I once wanted to quit school, can you believe that, and she 

said 'absolutely not' , cause·orie ofmy girlfriends had quit. I remember some things she 

told me about lhe fact tbal she bought a rn<lio for the, boys to sort of keep them home. 

and that's cause all the entertainment we had al home, and a, my o lde$l brother was 

supposed to get a job and [ don 't recall where, ·and the neighbors went over and said, 'no 

they don't need the job cause they wer!} able to afford a radio' so Ile didn't get the job. 

but in later years, do you know 1.ha1 that neighbor came over and apologiz.ed 10 my 

mother'? And they be-came very good friends, which was very nice. but it was very hard 

at that time. And I remember us listening to that radio on Saturday nights and Sunday 

nights of the old. Fred Allen shows and all that stuff so, and th.ere was one bike in lhe 

family, I always remember that and x, l was otlen on U1e handlebars of I.he boys bikes and 

often fell on my head, and that's whaCswrongwith me today 1 think.Xx 1 turned out to 

have a wonderful relationship ,villi my brothers. Very wonderful x, l think my mo1her 

buill that into us somehow. And my mother was pretty strong lady, she was very active in 

tl\e clmreh and on ihe go, she traveled until she was·82 years old when J didn't live11ere. 

She'd take Lheplanedown and we ship over to North Carolina to my brother's and she 

did very \\fell. 1 suppose because she was so busy, her knees were bad, she bad fallen 

down lhe Gazen stairs several. one time and down our stairs :md she really needed knee 

repairs. 

What was the Ga.zert? 

l 1;07:59 



The Gazert x they did undergannents for years and years you know. ladies· 

undergarments. (Sonya) Seamstress. there for x. she worked until she was 67 years old. 

(Sonya) yeah, she did very well for herslf. 

Did sJie ever remar.-y·r 

She didn't have time ya know. I think: they tried to x, oh 1 used 10 get so mad, I 

remember an uncle o(mine that used to try and fix her up with somebody and then he'd 

tease me about it and Pd just hate ii. x T just hated that when they would try to, fix my 

mother up with somebody, but she never went, never. 

She was widowed at what age? 

JI until x, she died at 87. Imagine. that's a Long time 10 be a widow isn 't it? I've 

been a widow about x 16 years myself and l can' t imagine the number of years she, 

She was family dedicated to her children.. 

Oh, Md cJosely,_close with her sisters and x, and her church was very important, 

and I think that's why we all ,nade it so well because we were so church iuvoJ ved and we 

had our morals set m. and we all did very well for ourselves. regardless. 

\Vhat was the church like during that time? 

Very fam ily oriented, imd course x, it didn ' t belong 10 any big organizations iL 

was mostly the Sumi-Cina they called it at that time, x the Finisb people built one clrnrch 

and I.bey x Swedish built anoU1er and ille Norwegians built another and so on and so forth 

and x. in fact J now belong to a club called Yasso? where they only only took. Swedish 

people al one lime and now there' s all, in there and I was just looking up some genealogy 

!hat 1'111 working on. And my great-grandma was Swedish tor heaven sakes, I was 



teasing. them, said oh am l disappointed T'in not a fuU-blooded Fin. (Laugh) I enjoyed 

tbal 

\Vere there special church services held for th ose in mourning? 

I don ' t recall it, but I remember my x brother Johnny, who died last year. I 

remember him saying at that x lake. where they had that service that lhey were, and he 

saw my mother reaching out wfth a flower and he got so nervous that he just holding in 

the hack, so she, see afraid of losing another parent again, that's the stocy he told me 

about that, r don't know anything more about it, except that, he was nervous about my ma 

falling into lhat water 100. 

Retell story. 

All l remember is what my brothe~ John; who died last year, x told me, he said he 

was at that service wiU1 her, and tbey were throwing, after the service lhey were throwing 

nowers on that lake. And my mother bent over lo throw her ilower and my brother 

grabbed a hold of her so she wouldn't fall in, he was so afraid he, probably to lose 

another parent. Cause don't forget he was, he was like seven years old al that tirne. So x, 

he was kind of my mother's pet anyway, we caUe<l bi.01 the, angel of, mama's angel of the 

family, ya know you always got one ofU10se in every family don't ya? Yeah, l,e sweetie 

I hough. oh he was a sweetie. Sox. otherwise x it's just all more or less hearsay what I. I 

might say this. we had a letter that the grandparen1s were gone in Finland. And they 

were, then the letter they wanted to have lhe property x, that was lefi 10 ~. by our 

grandparents, some distant relatives that knew them, that we should leave that property to 

them, x and the grandpareots wanted us ro have it and my mother said. ' no my children. 

had noUiing from their father' you know. And she wouldn't let it, in faet l had 1hat letter, 



my cousin Anna, well! through it and put it in English for me and, I've been trying to gel 

a hold of these people, they weren't answering, I think they're still mad at us or 

something cause my mother wouldn't give up that property, in Finland. So we signed it 

all over Lo111y mother to take a u:ip in 1965 to go to F'iuland 10 spend all thal money. So 

x, she brought us each, I think brought us all kinds of dishes and stuff and 1heo she gave 

us each.a1lllndred dollars, what was left over, you couldu't bring_thernoney over here, ya 

know. Sox. my mother just wouldn' t allow that she said we have to have something bu t 

we gave it to her, -cause she raised us anyway so, she enjoyed it, it was wondertul she 

coltld go· there. (Chatting) She had it bard, she really bad it bard. 

11:12:57 

Could you talk about bow yo·o relate that? 

I relate·lo it now because I'm older and l realize what being alone meant to her 

you know, raising children. I j ust x relate Co lhat to the point U1al l have these lonely 

periods, terrible sadness c001es over me at times and l don' t know what it is. But being 

the psychialrisi (hat I am, yeah. 1 just figured out that I thinkx it was I.hat x, the year after 

my father died, my mother probably was terrible lonely and so was 1. And that's all 1 can 

relate ti 10, and courser lived qu ite bit, look at that (WIPlNG TEARS),! lived.quite a bit 

by myself you know, with 1he boys, they had there own things, what would they want a 

liule kid around for, you know, so I sort of, lived next door to the Riala's? and was there 

every chance I got. Sometimes the door was closed into my face, but U:tey wer:e pretty 

good to me most of the ti me. And x, it was nice to be witb the g irls next door, there were 

no girls in lhe family. Sox, that•~ about all J can recall, rm trying to think about what 

else r could tell you, it's just the fact that x, 1 had a hardworking motbcr1ha1 raised five 



kids preny well. My oldest brother, was a boss in the mine, the second one was the big 

union man. but he also went into x weldi{!g at the college (WlPlNG l'EARS), !he third 

brother, x, had his own business, he had gone to extra schooling and hex, put in all this 

gas station equipment and the·fourth brother was a civil engineer, went to Tech. And I 

came out of high school and x, worked for the telephone company, r run Mich. x 

lshpemiJ.1g Bells now. And 1 wem to Chicago. I became a secretary for five year!>, and 

the oompauy liquidated and decided, J think I'll go to beauty school. So in eight months 

1, owned x, weUL LO beauty school, got my license T worked for x, was a manager for a 

shop for seven years, opened my own shop for five years, then 1 retired, X l got a bad 

back. But filled in at my husband's office on the secretarial or the bookkeeping or 

whatever they needed and x. that's (be way it's been going, but x. l bad kind of a, 

education all by itself for all the things I did, you know, so it's been an intererting life. 

And I'm sti II very active in most things, and l. I kind of give that to my mother. Cause 

she was so active, so I think she kind ofpt1shed that, on us to, be sclf0 sufficieUL, and do 

for ourselves and keep x. and trust in the Lord. 

Do you think lift.> would have turned out different if father was alive? 

I l.hink so, l think so. T don't lo1ow if would have been better worse, but r think I, 

I miss 1he fa1her figure. My brother Ralph, the second to the oldest, 'X was more of a 

father figure than the older boy. The older boy leO wlten we were x. but Ile was the fun 

guy in our life and he just x:, watched over us pretty well. And when he died, it was a 

shock to the whole family, he was like lhe nucleus of what was left of ui;, you know. X, 

but T lhink iL affected those older boys quite a bit too when father died, they understood 

more wbat was goiag on. 1 probably, see x had no idea what it is to be raised by 



anybody. but I, imagine lhere's a lol missing. Maybe that's where U1e quirks of my nre 

come in, where I a litLl.e bit (MAKES A CRAZY GESTER) you know. 

Things happen for a reason/You need to be a certain way. 

1 Lhiuk so, 1 wonder why (Sonya). Probably makes you just stronger or 

something, I don't kno,v. But I x, J do ii because, l lhink it comes from, x, upbringing, 

that"s the way it was and that's the way and that's ihe way it had to be. you know. And 

that's, l'm Tiow very busy at Hope Free Lutheran. Very busy over there. And a, it's a 

nice litUe family church, a smaU church and I like it U1at way. Sox, lot of good friends 

aod fam ily there. I never had a chi ld of my own either so, I've been teaching Sunday 

school for years and. doing all this son of stirff . .But I gave it all to my mother for what 

we, has happen to us and how strong she has been. 

TapcS 

Interview wttli Clifford T111deUIGrtmdso11 of Louis Trudell who was ktlled at the mine. 

11:23:07 

Stories ot' yom· grandfather? 

Well, I've always been told that x, he ,vas a, fun-loving guy, he really enjoyed x 

life, J mean hex wherever they were to, he was a lot of fun. And xx, it wasjusl fun to be 

arow1d and, x, he was good family man and x. and like I said 1 never, course J never got 

to, naturally l never got to sec him. 

What were some stories your dad told you about your grandfather? 

Yeah, tbere was some. You know, one of the, one oHhe x stories was is a, for 

instance x, hex shouldn 'l have been working the day U1a1 the mine went down. Hex 



1raded shifts with somebody else, for whatever reason, lhat they had connict and x. bad X 

change shifts and x, my dad was x Lhey used to a, you didn' t have all the cars you have 

now and being a new mine, out where it was too, U1is is how locations fom1, weather it 

was National Mine, Winthrop, or wha1ever, North Lake, x usually when they were gonna 

have amine because of. no transportation the a, company would build houses around it 

and x. rent them out to the people, and possibly even sell them to them after. But 

anyway, x so there was a truck d1a1 weni between x Ishpeming and lhe a Barnes and 

Hecker mine. Xx x, i.t was x ii was an open truck I guess, it had like a 1Jal bed and x, 

iliey put a tarp over i.1 in lb.e winter, but x, x my dad was x, there used to be a store right 

on x the comer of Pine and x Excellcer? store. [ mean Excellcer street, excuse me, and x 

he happen to be there one day when the x ~ruck came through and y9u know they were 

hollering you know there'.d been an accident ai the mine an accident at the mfne. So x, he 

x, it's kind of x, Excellcer street is kind of a long block and be ran all the way home and 

lo the house and up the stairs to tell his dad that he didn't have to go to, work that day. 

And ii wasn't until he hit the top ofd1e stairs that he realized that bis dad had changed 

shills that day. X, another one of lhe things that his .dad told him is x, l1e said that it was 

odd, cause he worked underground and, he said as bis dad told liim that they would be 

walking into t11ere a, place of woJ·k. they could hear I ike water gurgling. and x they col! Id 

never ftgure out what it was, and of course they were going right into a, l guess what it 

was is. lhey, you know they say an underground lake, but I think it was a, there was a lot 

ofmud·a:nd I mean the whole mine is filled with warer and mud. X but I guess this whole 

swamp l guess caved in because if you go and look at lb.at area now. in the back where 

the srockpiles were, x it's a big bog type thing and x. there's a lake !here now; or water 



there auyway, I'm not sure how deep it is, couldn 't ofbave been too deep cause the mine 

was very, young al the time so, il isn't like a it isn't like a, x, well, for instance, if you go 

to the end of.Exccllcer street, thece' s like a big lake. When l was a kid, there was no lake 

there. We used to be able to go from x, the store on the end, we used to ride across the 

junction location on the rail.road beds that went across the.re and overthe years. it x caved 

in and x so x. that's what happens to youc soft ore, mines, eventually they cave in, your 

hard ore mines, like Cliff-Shaft, which is right under the city of Ishpeming, x they say 

won' t do that, cause it's au on p1llars. 

Row did your grandmother cope/ famous picture'! 

Yeah aL1d if you look at that, there's a very typical picture, I spent a lot of time 

with my grandmother, abnost every, almost every weekend for pr,obably ten years, so I 

used to spend every weekend with her, and you know x, 1 can, there was ve1y little 

laughter, there was always, she'd sit in her rocking cha1r and rock and rock aud, maybe 

sew or just plain rock you know, and x the only time 1 remember seeing her smile and 

laugh is x. x maybe around the holidays whenhetand one of her si~ters used to, really get 

going bu~ you know, people really didn't have a way of getting arou11d like they have 

today you know, but x, 0U1er Lhcn that I mean my grandmother was always so serious and 

and o( course, right aC!er my grandfather got killed at first, that's when the depression set 

111 and x when you got eight kids and x, the youngest one was eleven months o ld when 

this happen I mean, this is, you know, an awful blow, you didn' t, you don't have, he 

didn ' t have all the, the things th.al you have today thalcover you know, money wise, and 

x, back then iu order to get aoy counry help any welfare. you had to sign over virtually 

anything you had. If you had a car x, you weren't allowed to own a car. which x x x, my 



grandfather had a, I guess they had an old Model A, station wagon or semething like that, 

but it wasn't. you know. of any value, and U1en x tbex course you had to sign over your 

house, and that was not up until, that wasn't U1at many years a.go that tlley changed this. 

lf you went on county welfare, you had to sign over your bouse, my grandmo1l1er and 

grandfather on my mother's side had 10 do that. So it's not !bat many years ago that this 

was the policy. and my grandmother just refused 10 give up ber house, whatever way they 

had to make Jt they, sbe was gonna make it without giving up her home. Sox, it it was a 

long, hard struggle. And as each ooe of the kids got older, well or course whentl)ey went 

oul ai,d got jobs i,;, you know they helped out, even to the point to where, like my father 

when he -got married, l lb.ink be was 24 when he got married. be bad. he saved, he took 

enough money out to pay for the marriage license and x. pay the priest; and gave the rest 

of his check to his mo1ber. They started out from scratch. And x, which I think that, you 

k11ow, it 's kind of amazing, and a, so, and of course he, as much as he collld, and tbc rest 

of them did 100 they, they tried to pitching in, you know, little-here tittle there x so that x 

she actually you know could stay in her home, almost.till the time·she x. x. you know. the 

last five, six years she e.ndcd up staying with, you k;oow some lime with my dad, some of 

I.he time witltan aunl in Racine, kind of divvy.up the winter and I.he swnmer. And theii x, 

the last couple years in a nursing borne. But she x, she always, x, I don ' t know if you 

want 10 call it bitter. bul. and like, I guess if you think about it. you can w1derstand why, 

11 :38:52 

lmerview with Thomas Friggens-Michigtm lro11 711du.my Museum Director 

What was 1be mjner li°ke du1·ing those days? 



tt was largely an immigrant labor force, x, the miners were were from European 

countries. the British Isles. Scandinavia, 11orthem European countries. Also from 

Canada. but it was indeed largely.xx, an immigrant work force. There were faU1ers and 

sons, at the Barnes-Recker mines for example, the day of the accident, I.here were two 

sets of fathers and sons. Thomas Klrby x. sel)ior Thomas Kriby junior, Edwin Chapnum 

and Hennan Chapnwn. X there were. a couple sets of brothers, the Tippet brorbers, 

Walter and William Tippet.x William Tippet was the x well respected, xx the well 

resp~cted mine captain, William Tippet was .lbe well rcspected1nille captain; and as iL 

turned out. this was his brother's first day on U1ejob, Walter's first day, working at 

Dames-Hecker mine, but, in the ca.-te of of x one one family, the the wife lost two 

brothers and her husband and one of her brothers was a widower. he had four children of 

his own, who were instantly orphaned, bm it fell upon his sister to bring those orphans 

itito her family, joining her own four cbiJdreo, who had lost their father. So suddenly she 

had a fam ily of eight children with no wager?, x and having lost two brothers as well. 

They hailed Crom neighboring communities, TshpemiL1g, Dieright. x Greenwood location. 

x Barnes-Hecker location. x most of them, driving distance away, although lhose who 

lived at Barnes-Hecker location could actually walk 10 the job site. 

Why did a.JI U1ese men decide to work in mine, t hough it was dn11gerous? 

It was stable employment, for one thing, x. x, the work ethic among residems oJ 

the Upper Peninsula, especially among lbe immigrants. was very strong work elhie. X 

many of lhe immigrants who migrated to the U.S. and to 1.he Upper Peninsula left their 

own nations behii1d, seeking a bette, life, whelhe, it was for economic n::asons or 

religlolL~ reasons.or for political reasons. And so while 1he streets may not have been 



paved with gold, in the Upper Peninsula or in America, work in lhe mines provided stable 

employment x for 1be immigrant workers. 

Did they realize that mioiog was a dangerous job? 

T suspect they realized it, but they accepted it, j!,!sl as we accept driving in our cars 

today, how maoy people are a, d.ieon the roads today. You k,now, we we realize it, we 

1.ake care, but it happens. X leading causes of accidents and deaths underground, in the 

mines were were x falls down shaft. collapsing tock. x falling tools falling from 

overhead, injuryittg or killing workers. Some accidents, probably several accidents 

actually; were simply in carelessness, bul also the fact that I.hat there were so many 

nationalities underground, speaking so many different languages, exacerbated the 

situation. The x x the fact that there was not generally a common spoken language 

underground, in some cases, workers simply did not understand words of warning or 

instruction until it was too late. 

Interview with Friggin comi..nued. 

What l1appened? 

TAPES 

The best was x oflheday coming frorn~bemi.ning eugineers, x who were 

convened lo study I.he accident, determined lhal iL x, probably resulted from, a midday, 

noontime blast. which ruptured an underground water reservoir called a vug a V-U-G, 

and il was x the rapid discharge of this water which acted alm.osl like a huge vacl!um. 

which caused the cave-in, from above, from the surface, and in a matter o( 15 minutes, 

water and sand filled lhe lhesbaft, from above, filled tbe sbaf\ and !hen began back ft!Jing 



U1e shaft, x and in those 15 minutes, you know, 5 I lives were lost, 42 women were 

widowed, JJ2 children ... 

1.2:23:43 

Wllat did those 3 me:n above g1·011nd do? 

Edward Hillman and Olivaan Miners had x both emerged from thesha1ljust 

moment$ before and actual! y x Hillman was on the cage when it was within f 5 feet of the 

sw:face and it was buffeted by the by the, what be described as what seemed like a big_ 

wind, coming from underground. x but while the incident is obviously one of loss, you 

know, examples of courage, were Hinman and Albert Tippet, whose two brothers and his 

stepbroU1er were still underground, put on oilskins and descended the shaft to investigate 

what the problem was and see if tbey could help x in.any way, and Olivian Miners and x 

another mine worker remained on surface, and after a second large rending crash came up 

to the surface to the shaft, Miners drew more and more concerned about Albert Tipet and 

Edward Hillman, and he himself put aside, feelings of his own personal safety and 

descended the shaft, to make sure they were ok and te assist them. At the other end of 

fhe of the afternoon actually and at the other end oftb.e mine, William Cenabear, the CCI 

safety inspector, and r think it was four other supervisors, attempted to enter the Barnes-

Hecker mine through lhe drift and the raise that c01mected it, wilh the miighboring x 

Morse_Lloyd mine, and again a very courageous act, personal act of courage in which 

they entered 1.h.is very dJl.llgerous eovironment, went as far as they could by electric 

motor. and then dismounted the motor and continued on foot, until they came to to the x. 

actual evidence of the sand and debris, the sand the sand and mud is described as being 

waste-deep and they were actually clai1'nili.g to to the wires of U1e x tram cars, ihe ha1llage 



locomotives and walking on piping aud from from stump io stump, to log lo debris, 

attempting to find the party of captain xx Bill Tipet; mine inspector William Hill wllo 

tried to escape from through this '?, x Con a bear came across lhe first body and 

recognized, after removing some of tbe mud, bis friend and hunting companion, Captain 

William Tippet. X the second body they fow1d, they they couldn' t identify it first., but 

afler, cleaning it up on site, Ibey identified it, several of them agreed. that il was Thomas 

Kirby senior. whose son. Tom Kirby junior was still in the mine shaft itself and never 

returned, bur it is, lime and again, a story of courage, individual eourage, in some cases of 

corporate courage, f believe. William G. Ma\ber, was fiercely dete1mined to recover all 

the bodies ofihe companies' employees and to slllvage the mine, x to clean the mine, 

and, I think it was toward the end of November, they had reclaimed the niine to a depth 

of just., x, just over 600 feel so they could actually enter lhe first level, and, 20 minutes 

after the rescue party left that first level, a dam broke and the mine flooded again, but iL 

was a, an extremely difficult effort. a valiant effort to reclaim the mine, but also ·an 

extremely ctifficult effort. And following that second flooding of the Bame-Hecker mine. 

the decision was made by all the experts. not only with CC1 but oU,er mining companies 

and geologists, (his was far too dangerous to attempt any further, so the decision was 

made to abru1don Lhen1iae, to ultimately till ii and lo cap the ax void at the shafl 

opening. 

Was then• a service for the men in stiU in the mine'! 

Acmally ten bodies were recovered, seven of them from the raise connecting with . 

. and then three bodies were recovered from the sruift, the three, Wills three companions, 

x Tom Kirby Juniot, Joseph Manki, and x x x the third one, x oh, Jack Hanna. (Sonya) 



Three bodies were recovered from !he shaft itself and they were they were lhe 

companions of Rutherford Wills, the Jone survivor, who attempted 10 climb ou1 ofllle 

shaft. Joseph Manki. Jack Hanna, who was x Wills' x brakeman on his motor on tl1e 

second level and 1.hen Thomas Kirby Junior on Lhe first level, but in their flight up the 

ladder, the ladder was s1ruck by x a heavy piece of equipmertt or material, it was 

shattered, somewhere between Wills, who was leading the way and the other three, the 

other three were very quickly overtaken by the rising. i1ood waters and were lost. Their 

bodies were recovered within U1e following week, J believ,e it was ilr the shaft itself.Xx 

x and so uJ1imately there were funeral services for the ten bodies, the people who were 

recovered. X at one of the services, il was a triple funeral, which x was conducted by Lhc 

x pastor of 1he lspheming-Finisb Lutheran church, the Reverend Bugh?, who drew upon 

lhe book of Revelation for his sennon. and he he promised moumers and comforted them 

by saying that 'God shall wipe away all the tears from their eyes, there shall be no tc-ars 

in heaven.' The following May. Memorial Day aclually, a funeral ceremony. which was 

also lead by the Reverend?, was conducted at the si te of the cave-in, which x, by this 

time x was a lake.xx x. light there on the shore of the lake. bouquets of-Oowers were 

tossed right there on the.surface on the water and x x one ca.n suspect that that brought a 

sense 9 f closure, if you wi 11, to the families and 0U1er mourners, who were mourning , 

this thrs gricvo·us loss. 

TAPE9 

Interview with.Leo la fi'ond-Gra11dfather was lO'!<is Trudell and ile also ltad a11 w1cle 
wlto worketl above ground at the mine. 

12:41: 12 

\Vhat did your uncle do during the Barnes-Hecker mine? 



Hex, he was responsible for lowering the guys, into the mine and hoisting them 

out, and on the day of the accident, when he went to lower the cage down, the power 

went out. That's xx, at that lime that's when the x accident was occurring. X and the 

mine was x fLlling up with water and it shorted all the electrical system out. X when x, 

when he, x couldn't lower the cage and found out the miile filled up with water, x hex x 

felt veiy bad about it because 51 of tbe 52 miners down there drowned. X he, x left town, 

for nine years. he moved to Iron Mountain, and the company finally convinced him, x, 

that xx. il wasn't his fault, and he moved back to Jshp~ming again and worked at U1e 

Morris mine, doing lhe same type afjob, lowering the guys back in I.he ground. But he 

didn' t wo.rk there very long because x, just seeing the guys, x, putting on their hard hats 

and getting into the cage with U1e work clothes, it brought back memories, and x, and i l 

wasn't Vf;ry long that he, be also x left that mine too. 

SEGMENT ENDS AT 12:42:35 

B-r-011 begins at 12:47:43 

TAPE JJ 

!111erview with George Wa/imaa/Father killed at the mine was So/0111()11 W11limat1. 

Could you tell the fishing story? 

13:1 7:58 

My partner and I were fishing on Lake Superior was x in tbe late 30's or early 

' 40's, and we picked up th.is Mr. Camane11 ?, tQ go fishing with us. And I don't know 

how il come about, talking about Barnes and Hecker mjne, and he told me, he said'x, l 

was your dad's partner. He said x this Mr. Tipet, the one that was in the shooting scrape 

in Marquette, he quit the police force and his brother give him thejob at Bames"ltnd 



Hec1rnr mine. So he went, my dad and Mr. Candon were splil up, my dad stayed day 

shift, and he we:al nigh1 shift and Mr. Tipet went to work with my dad and lhat's \he day 

he got killed. his first day in the mine. 

SEGMENT ENDS l3:J8:48 

Please tell us the story ab out your knife. 

13:25:56 

X we started picking blueberries over by x North Lake. the lake. and x, he lost bis 

knife, into the lake. So I had a knife with an oomge plastic b'andle on it, cause he needed 

a knife iu the mine, so T give him my knife, and x, when Lhey 1hought 1he lake went into 

Barnes and Hecker mine, U1ey dug a canal and it drained off the lake, cause Ibey thought 

the water came from there, but it didn't. A11d x, I went up. looked aro1111d up there, where 

he had lost his knife. and I found it U1ere. it was all rusted. 

13:30:10 
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Barnes-Hecker 
Memories o f a Misfortune 

Based on No Tears In Heaven 
By Thomas G. Friggens, the Director of the Michigan Iron Industry Museum 

Fade in and out of re-enactments. Pulsing music with a seri ous and melancholy 
sound. Spor adic Interviews (reverberated) 
beginning with the son and daughter of Walter 
Tippett. Short sound bytes such as Hill was 
buried on son's birthday and how Wills could 
never work in a mine aqain. 

Re-enactment Video Narrator: Each day, they left for work, entering a 

Pan Miners Group. 
place where daylight never shone-the Barnes-Hecker 
Mine. Each line on their faces represented an ho.ur of 
hard labor. On that cold, autumn day rn November 

Re-enactment Video. 19261 fifty-one of them never returl'led home. (Music 
fades) 

Fade to black and back up on the Silence 
title, "Barnes-Hecker'' (on the top 
line fades rn first) "Memories of a 
Misfortune" ( on the second line 
fad.es in two seconds later) Fade 
to black. 
Salisbury Group Music with an 1800's sound. 

N: During the late 1800's, Michigan produced 43· 
Workers in the hole (Zoomout percent of the nation's high-grade Iron ore, but 
from a shovel) extraction of the mineral from underground mines was 

becoming more difficult and expensive. &f ~e burn 0f 
~he eeA~ttr'fr'l"4iAAese~a te&k-eh&r-te--&f...it=eA e,:e_ 
~• adt:a~eA aft.et la11ge Mffleieol depoo+ts wef!e. 8e¥elepedr 
Du~ f!l_espit~I~ P4iehi98ft MiAe_!I u e~e s~il~~e(hl@IAg 

ZoomOut from S suits e•i e.-·¼e MHllefl ,e~e ei i,en eN!. Slumps in the n1arket 
at the end of the 19th century, however, created a 
volatile environment for the survival of smaller mining 

Pan CCI Execs companies, so several operations merged with larger 
ones. By mid· 19201 one of the three largest mloing 
companies was Cleveland-Cliffs, Inc, also known as CCL 

ZoomOut from Mater's Eyes (Music up/under) Business leaders at this tlme, such 
as CCI president WIiiiam Gwinn Mather, l:ielieved 
employers needed to protect Investments tiy protecting 

Happy Group their workers. From the standpoint of economics, th is 
meant caring and providing for employees by offering 

Pan Across Nationalities social welfare programs. Companies such as CC! also 
taught English to immigrant employees, but despite 

Mining Action these programs, mining at this t ime remained t:he most 
danaeraus line of work. 
Interview w/ Thomas Friggens, "Leading causes of 
accidents and deaths underground, r_o the mines we.re 
were x falls down shaft, collapsing rock, x falling tools 
falling from overhead, injuring or killing workers. Some 
accidents, probably several accidents actually, were 
simply in carelessness, but.also the fact that that there 
were so many nationalities underground, speaking so 
many different languages, exacerbated the situation. 
The x x the fartthat there was not aenerallv a common 



Mining Car Group 

Male Tippetts 

North Lake (Need to Get) 
Video of I.shpeming 

Re- Enactment lights In mine 
crossdlssolve to 
Video of Water 
Lagging Photo 
Video of flowing water 

Graphic of levels 

Re-enactment Video of pick 
Graphic of raise 

BH Workers Group 
Dissolve to 
pan of a row (BH Workers) 

BH Miners Group 
Zoomout of bearded man In 
--nationalities 

Walter Tippett w/ esse 
Walter Tippett wresteling 
Walter Tippett in snowzoomin 

Video of Chocolay 
Tight of W, Tippett (w/ wife) 
Walter Tippett FamilyZoomin 
----to Tippett 

Tippett in the snow 
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spoken language underground, In some cases, workers 
simply did not understand words of warning or 
inst'ruction until it was too late." Taoe # 7 
N: ln 1922, the CCI-owned Barnes-Hecker Mine in 
western Marquette County began lron ote production. 
Some Barnes-Hecker workers lived close to the mine in 
company-owned homes In the Barnes-Hecker Location 
and the Viliage of North Lake, but over half of the day-
shift workers lived in i:he City of Ishpeming, which was 
only a few miles a way from the mine. (Pause with 
Music) After the Barnes-Hecker opened for production, 
problems developed. The ground was full of water and 
despite the construction of cement walls underground, 
many workers still reported quicksand spilling through 
the cracks, To deal with the large volumes of water In 
the mine, engineers eliminated surface water that was 
causinQ oroblems. (Pause w/ Music) 
N: The Barnes-Hecker shaft went 1060 feet below the 
surface. Workers were deposited into the mine's three 
sublevels by electric cages at 600, 800 and 1000 feet. 
Ore was extracted at each level by using picks, shovels, 
and machines. The Barnes-Hecker was connected to 
the sixth level of the Morris-Lloyd Mine, but was divided 
by a 200-foot raise. (Pause with Music) There were 
approximately 150 men employed at the Barnes-
Hecker, split Into two shifts. The average age was 
thirty-six; and four out of five were married and had 
Children. rn total, Michigan's Iron Industry employed 
over 12,000 men during the 20's, with most of the 
workers being lmmigrc1nts, or sons of immigrants, from 
canada, the British Isles, and Scandinavia. (Pause w/ 
music) 
N: Seme of the miners are remembered as being great 
fathers, athletes, and even local heroes. Former 
Marquette City Police Department Night Captain Walter 
Tippett sho·t and l<llled a murder suspect who was 
fleeing authorities by swimmlng across the Chocolay 
River. Distraught over the shooting, 31-year-old 
captaih Tippett retired from the force and worked 
briefly for the state prison system, after which, he made 
a fatal decision. He took a job at the Barnes-Hecker 
Mine wher.e he had planned to work side-by-side with 
hls brothers. Tlppett's first day on the job would prove 
to be his last. 
Interview w/ Dewey Tippett and Irene Vlcary, Walter 
Tlppett's son and daughter. "While he he worked at the 
prison so, it was too far to, to hard to travel in the 
winter time, back in those days, the back and forth 
everyday, so he, he had x 2 brothers that were mining 
captains so he went up there to ask them for a job and 
neither one of them wanted to give him a job they 
wanted him, say long as your out of the mine to stay 
out." Taoe # 2 
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Valimaa Head N: Solomon Valimaa m oved to America from Finland 
Valimaa Wedding when he was only 16. He began working at the Barnes· 
George in Walimaa Family Hecker Mine In his m id-forties. His son George was 

almost 12 when he lost his father on November 3, 
Vallmaa Head 1926. l t wasn't until several years later he heard a 
Walter Tlnnett Familv(Tiqht) storv about his late father and Walter Tfooett. 

Interview w/ George Wallmaa, " My partner and I were 
fishing on J.ake Superior was >< In the late 30's or early 
'40's, and we picked up this Mr. Camanen to go fishing 
with us. And I don't know how it come about, talking 
about Barnes and Hecker mine, and he told me, he said 
x, I was your dad's partner. He said x this Mr. Tippett, 
the one that was in the shooting scrape in Marquette, 
he quft the police force and his brother give him the job 
at Barnes and Hecker mine. So he went, my dad and 
Mr. Camanen were split up, my dad stayed day shift, 
and he.went night shift and Mr. Tippett went to work 
with my dad and that's the day he got killed, his first 
dav In the mine.'' Tape #11 

Trudell as young dad N: Louis Trudell would never know his grandson. Only 
Video of C. Trudell pictures, and a teacup and saucer, which belonged to 

his g randfather, remind Cli fford Trudell, Jr. of Whom his 
Trudell family Zoomln to grandfather was. Clifford remembers the stories h Is 
Grandfather father t old him about his gr_andfc!ther who was l<llled 1n 

the Barnes- Hecker. 
Trudell Carnival Pies Interview w / Clifford Trudell, Jr.-Grandson " Well, I've 

always been told that ,c, he was a, fun-loving guy, he 
really enjoyed ,c life, I mean he ,c wherever they were 
to, he was a lot of fun. And x x, it was just fun to be 
around and, ,c, he was good family man and ,c, and like l 
said I never, course I never got to, naturally t never got 
to s-ee him ." Taoe #5 

Hill Head N: Emil HIii remembers his dad as the poll tlclan he 
Video of re- enactment was. His father would leave for work In the dark and 

return home In the dark. WIiiiam Hill was re-elected for 
Hill Head Zoomln a second term as County Mine I nspector November 2nd, 

1926. a dav before he was killed at the Barnes-Hecker. 
Interview with Emil Hill-William Hill's son " Well we 
didn't get to see him very much, cause he was ,c 
campaigner, he ,c tried for the job of mine ihspector, 
and the first two times he failed then the third time he 
got in, and the fourth time x x election day was the, 
what November 2••, yeah, and a, he got in but he never 
aot to serve because he was killed." Taoe #1 

Mllllmakl Wedding ZoomOut N: Solomon MIiiimak i had a wife and nine chlldren to 
- ----to Include wife support, so he took a job working underground In tt,e 
MIiiimaki Head Ba m es-Hecker ·Mine. large familfes were common 
Video of Roy during_ this t ime. Son Roy MIiiimaki remembers his 

father's sense of humor before that traolc dav. 
Interview w / Roy Millimaki-Solomon Mllllmaki 's son. 
Oh yes, yeah, we, we never wen~ hungry, we had cows 
in the barn and we had the old farm at the north lake 
forks, where the tire shop is now. That's where we 
were born and raise!!, he always said that all he could 
raise there was boys and grasshoppers. (Laugh) 
Taoe #2 



Musician GroupTight of Maki 
Maki Wed 
Maki Widow 5 Kids 
Ruth Powell Child 

Emil & Baby Ruth Maki 
Emil Maki Close Up 
Maki Widow 5 Kids (tight of 
- ----mom and Ruth) 

Fade to Black 
re- enactment of men showing up 
for work at the mine. 

Walter in snow 

WM Tippett & Grandma (tight on 
----• Tippett) 
Hill Head 
Mining Car Group (tight on 
-----Mongiat) 
Mining Ca r Group 

Conebear 

BH Workers Group 

Mining Car Group ( WmTippett) 
Hill Head ( on screen together ) 

Wills Wedding 
Wills on Porch 

Re-Enactment Video 

2 on screen (WmTippett/Hill) 

Charles Stakel (:Zoomin) 

Re- enactment from mine 
2 on screen (WmTippett/ Hill) 
Charles Stakel (Zoomin) 
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N: At the age of 16, Emil Maki came to America from 
Finland. He then rnarried his sweetheart Lemp! Kuiju 
(Cool'you). Maki later went to work at the Barnes-
Hecker Mine to support his fami ly. His daughter Ruth 
was only two when she lost her father-In the accident, 
but says she was daddy's little girl during her brief time 
with him. Although Ruth says she has no memories of 
her father, her mother told her stories of what kind of a 
dad Emil Maki was. 
Interview with Ruth Powell-Emil Maki's Daughter. A 
man that was sometimes criticized by, his In- law, 
brother-Jn-laws and that because he was so good to my 
mother. Like a, years ago a, if you didn't help a woman 
in the house but he was always great for, if we go 
v isiting my mother say he' d run a round the car and take 
the baby from her arms and then the other brother- in-
laws would tease him, but he was that type of a man 
very x, much Involved with h is x wi'fe and hi s children 
that wav. Taoe #4 
Melancholv music uo ancl fades out to silence. 
N: The morning alr has a familiar chill as the Bames-
liecker Mine day shift report to work on Wednesday, 
November 3, 1926. The main topic of discussion Is 
about yesterday ... Election Day. (Pause w/ Music) 
Several of the men are related to one another, brothers, 
cousins, sons1 and fathers. Walter Tippett ls anxious to 
begin his new job and reports to the well-respected 
mining captain, his 43-year-old brother William Tippett. 
Alsc;i underground ls newly re-elected County Mine 
I nspector Emil Hill. A 43-year-old pumpman Peter 
Mongiat, Sr. is filling ln for an absent co-worker and is 
working a double shift. The day is ordinary. Nothing 
foretells the fate that lies aheqd. (Pause with Music) 
Just three weeks prior to tt,ls day, the mine was 
declared safe by CCI'S safety Inspector a~er an 
unannounced vislt. He questioned many of the workers 
about the mlne's condition. Mine Captain WIiiiam 
Tippett and County Mine Inspector Emil HIii 
accompanied him on the tour of the Barnes-Hecker and 
came to the same conclusion: Barnes-Hecker was safe. 
(Pause with Music) 
N: 22-year- old newlywed Rutherford Wills reports to 
work on November 3rd • Wills, a tall and lean man, has 
worked two years underground at the Barnes-Meeker. 
Today, Wills Is working on the second level of the mine, 
800 feet below the surface. At 11:05 AM, Captain 
Tippett ani:l Mine Inspector Hill pass WIiis on the second 
level as they look over operations. As fate would have 
it, the wife of mining district superintendent Charles 
Stakel takes the family car to run errands, Stakel who 
would have performed his weekly inspection of the 
Barnes-Hecker with Captalh Tippett and Mine Inspector 
Hill now decides to visit a different mlne closer to his 
home, not knowing how his wi fe's action saved his llfe. 
(Pause w/ Music) 



Wills Head 
Re-Enactment of feet 

Crazy Vlde~ 
Jack Hanna Pie 
Dissolve to Black 
Re-enactment of mine 
Wills Wedding Mankee 
Video of water 
Crazy Video 
Dip to Black 
Video Leo into Intv. 

Re-enactment of feeling wall 
Re-Enactment of ladder 

Thomas Kirby, Jr. Pie 

Water Video 
Crazy Video 

Water Video and ladder 

Re-enactment of falling to the 
ground 
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N: At 11:20 AM, just as Wills and his co-workers are 
about to ascend to the surface for their lunch break, t he 
muffled sound of exploslves 1s heard. (SFX) Suddenly, 
an enormous blast of air knocks WIiis and co-worker 
Jack Hanna to the ground and extinguishes their carbide 
lamps. The earth t rembles; Wills and Hanna scramble 
In the dark for the way out. Wills calls out to his good 
friend Joseph Mankee to also leave. Without warning, 
sand and water pours into the fi rst level and down the 
shaft. Power to t he mine is cut off, leaving all fifty-two 
men in the underground world of the Barnes-Hecker In 
total darkness. Leo Lafond's uncle was the <::age 
ooerator. 
Interv iew w/ Leo Lafond, " He x, he was responsible for 
lowering the guys, Into the mine and hoisting them out, 
and on the day of the accident, when he went to lower 
the cage down, the power went out. That's x x, at that 
time that's when the x accident was occurring. X and 
the mine was x f i lling up with wate r and It shorted all 
the electrical svstem out." Taoe #9 
N: Wills and his co-workers feel their way in darkness 
to the shaft and begin the 800-foot towering climb up 
the ladder as mud and rock rain down upon them. 
When the men reach the first level, another co-worker, 
Thomas Kirby, Jr., Joins them in the climb. The level of 
water, mud, and debris is rising behind them at an 
alarming rate. Suddenly, something falls from above 
narrowly missing WIiis, but shatters the ladder behind 
hlm. He hears the haunting screams of his companions 
as they fall to their deaths. (Brief Pause) The water 
fises to Wills' waist as he climbs faster and faster. 
Workers from above, Including Wills' half-brother, are 
climbing down the ladder to aid their comrades and 
helos WIiis to the surface. 
Interview w/ Thomas Friggens, " Edward Hillman and 
Ollvian Miners had-x both emerged from the shaft just 
moments before and -actually x HIiiman was on the cage 
when it was within 15 feet of the surface a11d it was 
buffeted by the by the1 what he descr ibed as what 
seemed like a big wind, coming from under_ground, x 
but while the Incident is obviously one of loss, you 
know, examples of courage, were Hillman and Albert 
Tippet, whose two brothers and his stepbrother were 
still underground, put on oilskins and descended the 
shaft to investigate what the problem was and see if 
they could help x in any way, and Olivlan Miners and x 
another mine Worker remained on surface1 and after a 
second large rending crash came up to the surface to 
the shaft, Miners drew more and more concerned about 
Albert Tipet and Edward Hillman, and he himself put 
asi de, feelings of his own personal safety and 
descended the shaft, to make sure they were ok and to 
assist them." Taoe # 8 
N: At 11:30 AM, Wills, pulls himself out of the mine, 
and Immediately falls to the ground In exhaustion. He nas climbed 800 feet up a ladder in just ten minutes. 
(Pause with M'usic) 
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Intenriew with Greg Lynn-WIiis' Great Nephew 
"He was in x perfect physical specimen, he was only 22 
years of age or he may of not made it up, all that 
distance." Taoe #1 

Graphic N: Mud and debris plug the connecting entrance to the 
sixth level of the Morris-Lloyd Mine, avoiding further 

Wills Head Zoomln flooding that could have taken more lives. By early 
afternoon. It Is determined Wills is the lone survivor. 
Intenriew with Greg Lyn_n- Will's Great Nephew 
"He neve.r, was able, to go back to work in in a_ny mines 
around here, and they moved to Flint, and he worked in 
x Buick a.s a x believe It was a security cop or 
something like that. They did come back up here once, 
I think wa.s x 1943, a.nd he got a job on surface at one 
of the mines but he still didn't like that. And he had 
nlohtmares over that event for the rest of his life." 

Min·ing Car Zoomin to Tipp.ett N: At 4:00 PM, the first body is recovered 1000 feet 
from the raise -connecting the Morris-Lloyd Mine and the 
Barnes-Hecker. It Is the body of the beloved mining 
captain William Tippett. Nearby are two more victims, 

Hill Head William Hill and Thomas Kirby, Sr. Four other bodies 
Kirby, Sr. Pie are also recoveted from this same area and brought to 
3 Shot of Hanna, Mankee & the surface. WIiis' companions from the ladder, Jack 
·-·-·Kirby, lr. Hanna, Joseph Mankee, and Thomas Kirby, .Jr. are 

found days later In the shaft and brought to the surface 
Re-enactment of mine for burial. As the recovery work continues, another 

dam breaks within the mine, causing alarm among 
rescue workers. it-ts-Ele~eFMfAed ~ee deAgefe~ ~6 l~eep 
Nie sliek. apeA, ~he reeever,• eUetts firs@ etlanth~AeB e,ut 

Bh miners group ~he 1flif:1e ls elesed, turning the one~ productive, Barnes-
Hecker into a final resting place for fifty-one men. 
Interview w/ Thomas Friggens about mine be_ing closed 

Some of the widows Pie N: Forty- two widows are left behind to ra"ise 132 young 
Vfdeo of 4 People children. Descendants of those who perished were Just 

children at the time of the tragedy on November 3, 
1926. While their n·,-emories are dim from time, the 
emotions felt that day still run fresh in their minds. 

Trudell Family {Zoom In to Cllftord Trudell, Jr. says his father told him the story of 
Clifford, Sr.) how he found out about the traaedv. 

Interview with Clifford Trudell, lr., "There used to be a 
store right on x the corner of Pine and x Exceltcer ? 
store, I mean Excellc:er street, excuse me, and x he 
happen to be there one day when the x truck came 
through and you know they were hollering you know 
there'd been an accident at the mine an accident at the 
mine. So x, he x, It' s kind of x, Excellcer street is kind 
of a long block and he ran all the way home and in the 
house and up the stairs to tell his dad that he didn't 
have to go to work that day. And it wasn' t until he hit 
the top of the stai rs that he realized that his dad had 
chanoed shifts that dav.'' Tane #5 
Interview with Emil Hill " Well the thing I remember the 
most Is x teacher came over x I was in s•~ grade, and it 
was about 10 o'clock in the morning and she said you 
can go home. She didn' t tell me why or anything. And 
I got home and there was a lot of people over the 
house. And a, so I run upstairs, change clothes and 
went out to play, but there was nobody to play with 
thev were still In school. And a, when I come back to 
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the house there then x, my aunt came over and said 
your daddy got killed In the mine. So that was, the first 
x knew about it ... and he was buried on my bi rthday, the 
s"' of November." Taoe # 1 

Some of the Widows N: After the accident, widows were thrust into the role 
Pan of the Widows of mother and wage earner. CCI did provide 
ZoomOut of BH Workers compensation to families for their losses, but that could 
w. T ippett & W ife Zoomin to l)ot replace the men who had fallen. I n a letter to CCI, 
Wife Walter Tippett's wife wrote a letter to the company 

thanking them for financial assi stance and ended ti,e 
correspondence w ith a quote her late husband often 

A lbert & Walter Tippett said: "l may be down, but I 'm never out." Dewey 
Zoomin to Walter Tippett and sister lrene Vicary remember their mother's 
Tiooett Familv Dew/Irene extreme sadness over the loss of their father. 

Interview wit h Tippett/ Vlcary about mother. "What I 
remember the most i s my mother walking the floor all 
the t ime, f rom the k itchen to the, through the dining 
room Into the living and, cry ing her eyes out and had a 
han~kerchlef In her hand and wiping her eyes and x x x 
the little ones were big enough to get around walking x 
around, so they were following, x mum around so. But 
that was x that day was terrible and i t was for days 
afterwards to yeah." back and forth and then she, she 
was, x it was just a matter of disbelief t hat wasn't just , 
x people weren't gonna x accept the fact that, they 
were alt gone you know, x everybody was thinking 
hoping that they were gonna, be able to get some of 
them out, but x, I guess before t he day was out that it 
was all realized that x, this wasn't gonna be x anymore 
survivors in there so, x what was exactly pu t was x I 
don't know but I know she that there's been a bad, 
accident at the m ine, and x, our dad wouldn't be ooming 
home so. Taoe #2 
Interview with Emi.l Hill "Well she she musta had lots 
a slsu?, you know what seisso is yeah, well, cause she 
held up pretty good. And she comforted the children, 
and talked to the visitors and, uncles and aunties and 
cousins" (Music Uo and Fades Out to SIience) Taoe # 1 

Fade to Black. Interview w / Ruth Powell when he died, I th ink I gave 
my mother hard time, but I remember lonellness of x, 
going to the window and would s.ay ' don't cry, papa's 
coming home soon ... Very strong, x, didn't have to tell 
us to do anything twice, j ust t he took in her eye took 
care of that, we were never spanked or anything like 
that. Very strong, and told us exactly what w e had to 
do, 1: once wanted to quit .school, can you believe that , 
and she said ' absolutely not' , cause one of my 
oirlfrlends had autt. Taoe # 4 
Interview w / Thomas Friggens, " In the case of of x one 
one family, the the wife lost two brothers and her 
husband and one of her brothers was a widower, he 
had four children of hi s own, \Nho were Instantly 
orphaned, but it fell upon his sister to bring those 
orphans Into her family, joining her own four children, 
who ha.d lost their father. So suddenly she had a fami ly 
of eight ch i ldren with no wager ?, x. and having lost two 
brothers.as well . Taoe # 7 
Interview w / Dewey " Mom taught us to be 
indeoendent. Taoe # 2 
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Dissolve to the night photo N: Later that evenlng, family members surround the 
and zoom Into Mrs. MIOimaki. mineshaft painfully longing for information on their 

loved ones. Roy Mllllmakl's mother stands for hours In 
the cold waiting for word on her husband, Solomon, 
who she would hear later, had penshed along with fifty 
of his co-workers. 
Interview with Roy Millimaki about mother, " Everybody 
was In shock that was standing around the shaft, there 
there was very tlttle conversat ion going on. X they 
figured they some survivors would be coming outta 
there, but when we seen the water that they were 
bailing outta there was Impossible, to have any 
survivors-." 

Trudell Family (Tight of Wife} N: Trudell says he would visi t his grandmother every 
weekend as he was growing up. He says the expression 

Trudell Wedding on his grandmother's face the day of her wedding to 
Louis Trudell would be rarely seen again. ( Brief 
Pause) :J:Ae 19eiA aAd-afti}tti!lh eA-+:tepi fa@@ is e st:eFM 
@aA~ieaa@=te the Tr~dell's 1t•e-ddiAg photo. Tois ~iotttre 0f . - . .. .. . ,.. . . 
Interview with Clifford Trudell, Jr., " There was very 
litt·le laughter, there was always, she' d sit In her 
rocking chair and rock and rock and, maybe sew or just 
plain rock you know, and x the only time I remember 
seeing her smile and laugh is x, x maybe around the 
holidavs." Tane ·#5 

Maki Widow 5 Kids Zoomin to N: Because of t he Barnes-Hecker cave•ln, Ruth Powell 
mom says her mother was widowed at age 31. She would 

never remarry. Ruth says her mother was a very 
Emil Maki Wed. Zoomin to strong person and worked various jobs to support the 
mom familv. 

Interview w/ Ruth Powell, " She wallpapered in the 
summer months, every evening. And she sewed for the 
lady and baked for the lady next door. And she did sew 
for a lot of, she was excellent seamstress. And 
whenever the lady next door wanted some, where I 
spend my whole life next door, wanted anything baked, 
she, my mother was terrific at that, so she, she earned 
extra monev that wav all the time. Taoe #4 

Vl deo of newspaper headlines N: News of the catastrophe spread across the country. 
An early headline incorrectly announced fifty- two 
miners had died. That numberwas later changed to 

Cave In Site Frozen fifty-one. Court proceedings we.re conducted to try to 
Wills on Porch {Tight} determine what caused the Barnes-Hecker to cave In. 

Various witnesses, including the only survivor, 
Video of newspaper headline Rutherford Wills, provided testimony. CCI was not held 

resoonslble for t he incident. 
cave-In Site Interview w / Thomas Frrggens, ''The best was >< of the 

day coming from the mining engineers, x who wen: 
convened to study the accident, determined that it x, 
probably resulted from, a midday, noontime blast, 
which ruptured an unde~ground water reservoir called a 
vug a V-U•G, and it was x the rapid discharge of this 
water which acted almost like a hJJge vacuum, which 
caused the cave-In, from above, from the surface, and 
In a matter of 15 minutes, water and sand filled the the 
shaft, from above, filled the shaft and then began back 
fillina the shaft." Tal>e #13 fRE·SHOT\ 




